
 
 
 
Committee: 
 

COUNCIL BUSINESS COMMITTEE 

Date: 
 

THURSDAY, 26 APRIL 2012 

Venue: 
 

MORECAMBE TOWN HALL 

Time: 6.00 P.M. 
 

A G E N D A 
 
 
1. Apologies for Absence  
 
2. Minutes  
 
 Minutes of meeting held on Thursday 15th March 2012 (previously circulated).  

    
3. Items of Urgent Business Authorised by the Chairman  
 
4. Declarations of Interest  
 
5. Special Council Meeting 2012 (Pages 1 - 4) 
 
6. Member Development Charter (Pages 5 - 42) 
 
7. Appointments to Committees and Changes to Membership  
 
ADMINISTRATIVE ARRANGEMENTS 
 
(i) Membership 

 
 Councillors Richard Newman-Thompson (Chairman), Roger Mace (Vice-Chairman), 

June Ashworth, Melanie Forrest, Janet Hall, Sylvia Rogerson and David Whitaker 
 

(ii) Substitute Membership 
 

 Councillors Tony Anderson (Substitute), Tim Hamilton-Cox (Substitute), Geoff Knight 
(Substitute), Jane Parkinson (Substitute), Ian Pattison (Substitute) and Emma Smith 
(Substitute) 
 

(iii) Queries regarding this Agenda 
 

 Please contact Peter Baines, Democratic Services - 01524 582074, or email 
pbaines@lancaster.gov.uk. 
 
 
 
 
 



 

(iv) Changes to Membership, substitutions or apologies 
 

 Please contact Members’ Secretary, telephone 582170, or alternatively email 
memberservices@lancaster.gov.uk. 
 

MARK CULLINAN, 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE, 
TOWN HALL, 
DALTON SQUARE, 
LANCASTER LA1 1PJ 
 
Published on Wednesday 18th April 2012.   

 



COUNCIL BUSINESS COMMITTEE  
 

Special Council Meeting 2012 
26th April 2012 

 
Report of Democratic Services Manager 

 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

To present options for the Special Council meeting with young people from sixth form 
colleges across the district. 

 

This report is public 

 
Recommendations: 

That the Committee reaches a decision on the content and logistics of the 2012 
Special Council Meeting.   Community Engagement has put forward three 
options for the content of the meeting: 

i. political speed dating; 

ii. pupil power game; 

iii. world café discussion groups. 

 
1 Introduction 
 
1.1 At the previous meeting, members agreed to hold this year’s Special Council 

meeting with young people from across the district, in order to engage with a 
section of the population which often has little contact with the Council.   

 
1.2 Meetings of the Special Council are held biennially to consider a single item, 

listen to a speaker, meet in an assembly or forum, or to consider a local, 
regional or national issue.   

 
1.3 In this instance, members elected to meet in an assembly or forum with 

young people of sixth form age from across the authority’s administrative 
area.   As such, officers from Community Engagement were requested to 
formulate proposals for decision at this meeting on the structure and content 
of the day.  Those details are presented in the paragraphs below.   

 

2. Proposals from Community Engagement 

This event will be an opportunity for: 
 
i. Councillors and young people to talk and exchange views;  

 ii. Councillors to find out what is important to young people; 
iii. Young people to gain a greater understanding of the council, the role 

Agenda Item 5Page 1



of the councillor and the challenges that they face.  
 
2.1 The event will need to start with an overview of the council and the 

democratic process.  An interactive exercise will be developed to introduce 
the young people and councillors to each other and help to create a more 
informal and relaxed atmosphere.  

 
2.2 There are three options, in terms of content, for the Committee’s 

consideration:  
 

i. political speed dating;  
ii. pupil power game; and 
iii. world café discussion groups 

 
2.3 Political speed dating  
 
2.4 Political speed dating is a fun and light hearted way for young people to 

interact with councillors. Like conventional speed dating, each session 
consists of a series of three minute dates or interactions (or around five 
minutes if in pairs of councillors). During this time, councillors and young 
people can ask their partner anything except their age, party affiliation and 
place of residence. The idea is to focus on what the person is really like and 
what is important to them. When the gong sounds, everyone moves on.  

 
2.5 At the end of the event, the views of the students and councillors would be 

captured in a creative way.  
 
2.6 Dependent on the number of young people attending, councillors may need to 

sit or move around in pairs.  
 
2.7 The council has not run this type of event before, although Lancashire County 

Council and South Lakeland District Council colleagues have, and they could 
be contacted to share their knowledge and experience.   
 

2.8 Pupil Power game 
 
2.9 Pupil Power is a game based on ‘monopoly’ but rather than spending money 

buying streets and houses, there are cards to represent council services.  
Pupils are given a budget of £15 million and a list of services that add up to 
£20 million, and are asked to decide in groups which services to buy and 
which they could manage without.  They are helped in their deliberations to 
balance the budget by elected members and officers.   

 
2.10 This is a topical exercise which gives young people a taste of what it is like to 

be a council member, representing voters and making decisions that affect 
everyone in the district.   

 

2.11 A large number of young people would need to attend to balance the number 
of councillors and young people in each group.   

 
2.12 World café discussion groups 

Page 2



 
2.13 This is a creative format which would provide councillors and young people 

with the opportunity to discuss topical issues and develop solutions together.   
 
2.14 Councillors and young people would sit together on small tables and a 

number of positive questions would be set, to encourage them to discuss the 
chosen issue and develop a number of solutions together.   

 
2.15 Part way through the discussions, people would be asked to move tables, 

thus providing a wide variety of participants.   
 
2.16 Some councillors will have experienced this format in a recent community 

leadership session or the Connecting Communities project. This format has 
also been used for local resident budget discussions.   

 
2.17 The World Cafe could focus on ‘next generation democracy’, with the 

councillors and young people asked to develop ideas and actions to engage 
the next generation in the democratic process. 

 
2.18 A Lancaster University student is planning to do a project on this issue for the 

council and this event may be an opportunity to test some of their ideas and 
recommendations.  

 
2.19 The outcomes and potential actions from the groups of young people and 

councillors would be captured in a creative way throughout the discussions.   
 
2.20 Logistics 
 

2.21 It is recommended that the event runs from 1pm to 4pm, at a venue which 
can provide flexible space including small tables and chairs. The ideal venue 
would promote an atmosphere of relaxed informality.   

 
2.22 All sixth form schools and colleges in the district will be contacted and asked 

to send representatives. Youth Council representatives may also be invited. 
Ideally the schools and colleges will be contacted as soon as possible to 
provide them with time to select representatives, plan into their timetables and 
make any necessary travel arrangements.   

 
2.23 The benefits for the students will need to be promoted in order to encourage a 

strong turnout from young people, and it is recommended that Lancashire 
County Council Youth Service are asked to be involved as they are a good 
source of expertise and experience.   

3 Conclusion  

Members are asked to make a decision on their preferred option for the 
content of this year’s Special Council meeting.  In addition, members may 
wish to consider the venue, logistics and any specific objectives which they 
have for the event.   

 
 
 

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

Page 3



(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural 
Proofing) 

None.   

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

Legal Services have been consulted and do not have any comments to add. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

Any costs would be minimal and can be met from within existing democratic budgets. 

 

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

Human Resources: 

None. 

Information Services: 

None. 

Property: 

None. 

Open Spaces: 

None. 

 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 

The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 

The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

None. 

Contact Officer: Peter Baines, Senior 
Democratic Support Officer 
Telephone:  01524 582074 
E-mail: pbaines@lancaster.gov.uk 
 

 

Page 4



COUNCIL BUSINESS COMMITTEE  
 

Member Development Charter 
26th April 2012 

 
Report of Democratic Services Manager 

 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

To present options for the retention or otherwise of the Member Development Charter, 
which the council currently holds at Level One.  It is now due for reassessment. 

 

This report is public 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE DEMOCRATIC SERVICES MANAGER: 

That the Committee considers whether to: 

i. submit an application to retain the Member Development Charter at 
Level One; 

ii. withdraw from the Member Development Charter. 

1 Introduction 

1.1 The Member Development Charter is an award which recognises local 
authorities that demonstrate a strong commitment to member development.   

 
1.2 The Charter helps to build elected member capacity by improving skills, 

knowledge and experience and, together with the underpinning good practice 
guidelines, was developed by Local Government Improvement and 
Development (formerly the IDeA) and the nine regional employers 
organisations.  
 

1.3 Administrated in this region by the North West Employers Organisation 
(NWEO), the Charter operates at two levels; Level One is awarded to local 
authorities with a strong member development function, whilst Level Two 
conveys advanced recognition. 

 
1.4 In 2002, the Chief Executive and Leader of the Council (then Councillor Ian 

Barker) signed up to the Charter, and the Council Business Committee led a 
sustained piece of work which led to Level One accreditation in 2008. 

 
1.5 The Council is now due to be reassessed for the Charter, and the Committee 

is invited to consider whether to continue within the scheme. 

 

2 Level One Charter Review 

2.1     To retain Level One of the charter, the council would need to demonstrate 
compliance with the following six points: 

Agenda Item 6Page 5



 
i. continued commitment to member development demonstrated at all 

levels across the council; 
 
ii. an established member development strategy to support 

organisational needs and overall strategy; 
 

iii. clarity of subject area and methods of delivery based on member 
needs assessments; 

 
iv. 75% of members having completed a personal development plan; 

 
v. Clear communication strategy which supports member development; 

 
vi. A method of evaluating learning and development activities and 

continuous improvement. 
 
2.2 Retaining Level One status would require a considerable amount of work from 

officers and elected members alike.   At the present time, officers are 
concerned by low attendance figures at member briefing sessions, and the 
number of councillors who are still yet to sign up for a personal development 
plan. 

 
2.3 Whilst this would present a further challenge in terms of retaining the Charter, 

the council does have a successful blueprint from which to co-ordinate a bid, 
having achieved Level One in 2008.  
 

3 Level Two of the Charter 
 

3.1 Qualification for Level Two status would require a step change from the 
approach to Level One, and there are concerns that the necessary staff time 
is not currently available. 

 
3.2 Full details on the process for retaining Level One or achieving Level Two are 

attached at Appendix 1. 
 
4 Conclusion 
 
4.1 Members are asked to consider whether to reapply for Member Development 

Charter status.  Whilst retaining Level One of the Charter would require a 
considerable amount of work for members, dedicated officer support will be 
available from Democratic Support. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment) 

 Option 1: Re-apply for Level 
One of the Charter 
 

Option 2: Do not apply for 
accreditation 

Advantages Retaining Level One would 
reaffirm the council’s support for 
elected members, and recognise 
the important role they play on 
the council and in local 
communities. 
 
It would also guarantee that 
minimum standards were in place 
to ensure that members receive a 
high quality of support from 
officers. 
  

No known advantages. 

Disadvantages There will be an impact on officer 
and members’ time in order to 
prepare a bid for retention of 
Level One. 
 
However, this can be met by the 
current staffing arrangements in 
Democratic Support. 
 

Losing the Member Development 
Charter would have a negative impact 
on member development and undo 
the Committee’s previous work to 
attain Level One. 
 
Externally verified minimum standards 
would no longer be in place if 
accreditation was lost.   
 

Risks No known risks. Loss of accreditation. 

 

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural 
Proofing) 

None. 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

Legal services have been consulted and have no comments to make. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

Option 1 would involve staff time and this would need to be met from the current staffing 
levels. Any training requirements would need to be met from the agreed Members Training 
budget allocation of £10,500 for the current financial year. 

 

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

Human Resources: 

A bid for Level One retention could be more effectively managed with the current staffing 
arrangement. 

Page 7



Information Services: 

None. 

Property: 

None. 

Open Spaces: 

None. 

 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 

The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 

The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

None. 

Contact Officer: Peter Baines 
Telephone:  01524 582074 
E-mail: pbaines@lancaster.gov.uk 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 8



North West Charter 
on

Elected Member 
Development

Charter Process 

Level 1, Level 1 Review 
and Level 2 

Jan 2012

Appendix 1

Page 9



1

NORTH WEST CHARTER
on

Elected Member Development 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Municipal Journal and North West Employers 

We believe that at the heart of any authority dedicated to meeting the needs 
of its community will be a commitment to the development of its elected 
members. Members will be supported and assisted in playing their vital role 
in modernising local government. 

Signing up to the principles of the Charter commits the authority to work 
towards expressing their commitment in practice by implementing the five 
key points of the Charter. 

! Having a statement of intent 

! Ensuring that all members are made aware of learning and 
development opportunities 

! Having a process to identify individual development needs 
which involves members 

! Having an officer allocated to assist members and groups in 
identifying needs and providing information on resources 

! Having a strategy to meet the training and development needs 
of elected members 

Signed by Chief Executive: ____________________________________ 

Signed by Leader:           ____________________________________ 

Signed by Chair of            ____________________________________ 
Employers’ Organisation 

Appendix 1

Page 10



2

History of the Charter and Member 
Development Strategy 

During 1999 the Employers’ Organisation agreed a regional strategy 
on member development. The strategy was crafted by the regional 
task group which was made up of seven elected members who 
contributed not only their expertise but their energy and enthusiasm. 
The three elements of the regional strategy are: 

! gaining commitment 
! regional provision 
! involving members 

The concept of a charter was born out of a desire to encourage 
commitment to member development and to reward those authorities 
who have demonstrated that commitment. The North West Charter on 
Member Development will provide tangible evidence of an authority’s 
commitment to long-term investment in the development of its 
elected members. 

The ethos of the Charter is built around the third element of the 
regional strategy “involving members” in their own development. 
One of the ways of doing this is having a Member Development Group 
made up of members from all the political groups plus an officer/s 
responsible for member development. One of the other things that as 
assessors we hope for, but something which is difficult to measure, is 
enthusiasm demonstrated by the members and the officer(s). If you 
have it you’re half way there! 

The Charter operates at two levels, similar to the Investor in People 
Award. Firstly, authorities sign a declaration to show their 
commitment to the principles of the Charter; secondly, following 
external assessment, authorities are awarded the Charter to show 
they have demonstrated their commitment in practice and have all the 
required elements in place. 

We are particularly pleased that the Municipal Journal shares our 
interest in member development and they support the initiative by 
awarding a special merit prize at our celebration events. 

These guidance notes have been prepared to help authorities working 
towards the Charter understand the process. They will give an 
indication of the evidence which would support an application for a 
Charter.

Appendix 1

Page 11



3

Each authority will have its own approach to developing members, 
with some having a long tradition of providing excellent development 
opportunities, and others just starting. 

However, irrespective of the starting point, authorities can still sign up 
by giving their commitment to the principles contained within the 
Charter. There is no time limit between declaration and assessment. 
Whilst some authorities may be ready now, others may need time to 
put the elements in place. The intention of the Charter was to 
encourage the development of a learning culture, not a quick fix, and 
therefore Charters will be awarded annually. In addition to the 
guidance notes, information and advice is available from North West 
Employers and you can call Lorna Krisson on 0161 214 7121, or e-
mail lornak@nwemployers.org.uk.

Using This Booklet 

This booklet has been designed to help you and your authority explore 
and progress through each level of the Elected Member Development 
Charter. The content of this booklet covers all three levels of the 
Charter; Level 1, Level 1 Review and Level 2. It outlines each process 
for each level, explains the steps involved to work towards receiving 
an award and supporting information. 

Appendix 1

Page 12



4

The Overall Process 

There are four options: 
1. Progress from L1, to L1R and L2 taking no longer than 3 years gap 
between each award. 
2. Complete a L1R every 3 years to maintain Charter status. 
3. Progress from L1 to L2 within 3 years of receiving L1 award. 
4. Complete different applications to receive multiple L2 awards. 

Level 1: Evidence for Level 1 
Self Assessment Tool and Assessment 

Page 7 

Level 1 Review: Evidence for Level 1 Review 
Self Assessment Tool and Assessment 

Page 13 

Level 2: Evidence for Level 2 
Application form and Assessment 

Page 20 

Sign the Declaration of Commitment to the 
principles of the Charter

1. Steady 
progress
from L1 to 
L1R and 
then to L2 

3.
Progress
from L1 
to L2 
within 3 
years

4. Complete 
numerous L2 
applications on 
different 
projects

2.
Complete a 
L1R every 
3 years 

Appendix 1

Page 13



5

Charter Process 
Level 1

Appendix 1

Page 14



6

Charter Level 1 

Are You Ready? 

Before applying for Level 1, reflect on the following questions to gauge 
whether you and the authority are ready to begin the process of the 
Charter assessment. 

! Is the council committed to supporting member development and 
can you evidence this? 

! Do you have a member development strategy which is designed 
and endorsed by members? 

! Do you address the personal development needs of individual 
members with approximately 50% or more of members 
completing a personal development plan? 

! Do you use this information to help establish your training and 
development approach? 

! Do you evaluate all training and use this to inform improvements 
in your approach? 

! Is there officer support allocated to help facilitate and manage? 

Appendix 1

Page 15



7

Charter Level 1 

The Level 1 process concentrates on ensuring the fundamental
methods to aid member development are apparent within each 
authority assessed. 

Next Steps 

Step One: Sign the Declaration of Commitment to 
the principles of the Charter 

Step Two: Register and complete the online self 
assessment tool: Member Charter Net 

www.netaudit.co.uk/nweo

Section 1 
Self assess against the criteria of 

Level 1. Upload evidence and 
comments to ensure standards 

are met 

Section 2 
Help and guidance available: 

examples of good practice and 
resources

Step Three: Complete pre-assessment and 
verification visit

Step Four: Outcomes and Completion of Report 

Step Five: The Regional Development Committee 
Meeting

Progress to Level 1 
Review in three years 

Jump to Level 2 within 
three years 

Appendix 1

Page 16



8

Level 1 Process 

Step One
Sign the Declaration of Commitment 

Authorities need to sign the Declaration of Commitment to the 
principles included in the Charter; both the present Leader and Chief 
Executive must sign the Declaration. This is an important first step as 
it is intended to promote a healthy discussion on the authority’s needs 
and intention in terms of member development. When you return your 
signed Declaration, it will be signed by the Chair of the Employers’ 
Organisation and returned to you. 

To request a Declaration of Commitment, or for a discussion around 
the principles of the Charter please contact Lorna Krisson by 
telephoning 0161 214 7121. 

Step Two 
Register to the online Member Charter Tool 

Each authority needs to complete a pro-forma to register to the online 
Member Charter Tool. The electronic pro-forma can be found at: 

www.nwemployers.org.uk
Learning and Sharing Skills 
 Councillor Development 
  North West Development Charter 
   Charter Standards and Process 
    Level 1 and 1 Review 

Once completed, it can to be sent to Lorna Krisson by emailing 
lornak@nwemployers.org.uk. A project for your authority shall then 
be set up and you shall receive instructions on how to access the tool. 

There are four key functions of the tool: 

a) Self Assessment – authorities mark themselves against suitable 
criteria which incorporates commitment and function of uploading 
evidence

b) Action Planning – online planning and reporting function using a 
traffic light rating against all criteria, help to focus on achievements 
and prioritise activity 

Appendix 1

Page 17



9

c) Peer Assessment – North West Employers will provide support, as 
well as volunteers from the region, to oversee the progress and 
undertake assessment, both face-to-face and remotely via the tool 

d) Help and Guidance – each criterion has a description of the type of 
evidence that is required – under the ‘I’ button. Examples of good 
practice, resources and links to national / local websites 

Section 1 Work through each criterion marking yourself at a suitable 
level of achievement. Upload suitable evidence to support 
your opinions and write comments to expand or use for 
action planning purposes. 

Section 2 Use the ‘I’ button to learn more about the criterion, find 
out more about suitable evidence and example resources. 

Step Three 
Complete Pre-Assessment and Verification Visit 

After you have completed all the criteria, the tool says you have 
achieved at least 50% of the overall standard, and feel you have 
everything in place then contact: 

Lorna Krisson 
Knowledge and Network Assistant 
E: lornak@nwemployers.org.uk
T: 0161 214 7121 

You will be removed access on a temporary basis while we explore the 
evidence you have uploaded. Once feedback has been given we shall 
then support your needs and how best to complete the assessment 
process on an individual basis. An elected member from the Regional 
Development Committee and an officer from North West Employers 
will undertake the assessment visit/s. The visit will be in part to check 
that the authority meets the standards, but also an opportunity to 
discover different approaches which can be shared as good practice. 

Step Four 
Outcomes and Completion of Report 

The assessors will write a report that will go to the Regional 
Development Committee or Executive Board for approval. 

Appendix 1

Page 18



10

Step Five 
The Regional Development Committee Meeting 

The Committee can: 

! Confirm successful attainment against the standards 
! Defer awarding status and suggest a plan of action to meet the 

Level 1 standards 

Once awarded, a Celebration Event takes place to celebrate 
authorities’ achievements. Additionally, a special merit prize shall be 
awarded by the Municipal Journal to give one authority an exemplar 
award.

Level 1 Charter has a lifespan of three years, after which authorities 
will be asked to submit evidence of how they have sustained and 
further developed their commitment to member development by 
undertaking Charter Level 1 Review. Authorities can also progress 
straight to Level 2 Charter within three years after receiving the Level 
1 Award. 

Appendix 1

Page 19



11

How the Assessment Visit Will Run 

1. Each visit will include one elected member from the North West 
Employers Regional Development Committee or Executive Board and 
an officer from North West Employers. 

2. The visit will be arranged in advance and will last for approximately 
half a day. An officer from North West Employers will liaise with the 
relevant officer from the authority to make the arrangements. 

3. A room and refreshments will need to be made available for the 
assessment team. 

4.  During the visit the assessment team will want to speak to: 

- The Leader (or Deputy) 
- The Chief Executive / Chief Officer 
- Leader of the Opposition Group 
- Chair or Portfolio Holder 
- Chair or Member of the Training Group 
- A Newly Elected Member 
- Three randomly Selected Elected Members 
- An Officer/s Responsible for Member Training 

5. The interviews are timetabled in 30-45 minutes slots. The 
interviews can be conducted individually or in small groups based on 
your requests. 

6. At the end of the visit the assessment team will produce a report for 
the next meeting of the Regional Development Committee. The 
authority will be advised of the decision immediately after the 
Committee meeting by telephone and will receive written confirmation 
and copies of the report. 

7. If the assessment team or Regional Development Committee feel 
that some elements of the evidence are incomplete then the authority 
will be advised and will be given the opportunity to complete the 
evidence and be assessed again. 

8. If the authority is successful then they will be awarded the Charter 
and invited to the Celebration Event. 

9. Authorities can be assessed at any time during the year, however 
the Celebration Event is only held once a year.

Appendix 1

Page 20



12

What We Will Look For in the Level 1 Assessment 

During the assessment visit, there are some key areas that we shall be 
looking for, to take away examples and draw best practice from: 

! Commitment to member development demonstrated at all levels 
across the council 

! Members take their development seriously and engage in 
development available 

! Individuals’ needs are considered and fed into the overall 
development strategy with 50% of members completing a PDP 

! Dedicated support is provided to co-ordinate and communicate 
member development activities 

! Development activities are evaluated with feedback into overall 
strategy

! Appropriate resources are allocated to meet development needs 

Appendix 1

Page 21



13

Charter Process 
Level 1 Review

Appendix 1

Page 22



14

Charter Level 1 Review 

Are You Ready? 

Before applying for Level 1 Review, reflect on the following questions to 
determine whether you and the authority are ready to continue the 
process of the Charter assessment. 

! Is the authority still committed to member development? 

! Do members take a lead in promoting development? 

! Have at least 75% of members got personal development plans? 

! Member development continues to be supported by an appointed 
officer/s? 

! Has the strategy been reviewed at least twice in the last three 
years?

Appendix 1

Page 23



15

Charter Level 1 Review 

The Level 1 Review process focuses on ensuring the continued
achievement of supporting member development within each 
authority assessed. 

Next Steps 

Step One: Reaffirm commitment to the principles 
of the Charter by resigning the Declaration of 

Commitment 

Step Two: Register and complete the online self 
assessment tool: Member Charter Net 

www.netaudit.co.uk/nweo

Section 1 
Evidence of impact of member 

development on the work of the 
authority

Section 2 
Show commitment to continuous 

improvement 

Step Three: Complete Application Process and 
Verification Visit  

Step Four: Outcomes and Completion of Report 

Step Five: The Committee Meeting

Complete Level 1 Review 
every three years 

Progress to Level 2 
within three years 

Appendix 1

Page 24



16

Level 1 Review Process 

Step One
Resign the Declaration of Commitment 

Authorities need to sign the Declaration of Commitment to the 
principles included in the Charter; both the present Leader and Chief 
Executive must sign the Declaration. When you return your signed 
Declaration, it will be signed by the Chair of the Employers’ 
Organisation and returned to you. 

To request a Declaration of Commitment, or for a discussion around 
the principles of the Charter please contact Lorna Krisson by emailing 
lornak@nwemployers.org.uk or by telephoning 0161 214 7121. 

Step Two 
Register to the online Member Charter Tool 

Each authority needs to complete a pro-forma to register to the online 
Member Charter Tool. The electronic pro-forma can be found at: 

www.nwemployers.org.uk
Learning and Sharing Skills 
 Councillor Development 
  North West Development Charter 
   Charter Standards and Process 
    Level 1 and 1 Review 

Once completed, it can to be sent to Lorna Krisson by emailing 
lornak@nwemployers.org.uk. A project for your authority shall then 
be set up and you shall receive instructions on how to access the tool. 

There are four key functions of the tool: 

a) Self Assessment – authorities mark themselves against suitable 
criteria which incorporates commitment and function of uploading 
evidence

b) Action Planning – online planning and reporting function using a 
traffic light rating against all criteria, help to focus on achievements 
and prioritise activity 

Appendix 1

Page 25



17

c) Peer Assessment – NWE will provide support, as well as volunteers 
from the region, to oversee the progress and undertake assessment, 
both face-to-face and remotely via the tool 

d) Help and Guidance – each criterion has a description of the type of 
evidence that is required – under the ‘I’ button. Examples of good 
practice, resources and links to national / local websites 

Section 1 Work through each criterion marking yourself at a suitable 
level of achievement. Upload suitable evidence to support 
your opinions and write comments to expand or use for 
action planning purposes. 

Section 2 Use the ‘I’ button to learn more about the criterion, find 
out more about suitable evidence and example resources. 

Step Three 
Complete Verification Visit 

After you have completed all the criteria, the tool says you have 
achieved 100% of the overall standard, and feel you have everything 
in place then contact: 

Lorna Krisson 
Knowledge and Network Assistant 
E: lornak@nwemployers.org.uk
T: 0161 214 7121 

You will be removed access on a temporary basis while we explore the 
evidence you have uploaded. Once feedback has been given we shall 
then support your needs and how best to complete the assessment 
process on an individual basis. An elected member from the Regional 
Development Committee and an officer from North West Employers 
will undertake the assessment visit/s. The visit will be in part to check 
that the authority meets the standards, but also an opportunity to 
discover different approach which can be shared as good practice. 

Step Four 
Outcomes and Completion of Report 

The assessors will write a report that will go to the Regional 
Development Committee or Executive Board for approval. 

Appendix 1

Page 26



18

Step Five 
The Regional Development Committee Meeting 

The Committee can: 

! Confirm successful attainment against the standards 
! Defer awarding status and suggest a plan of action to meet the 

Level 1 Review standards 

Once awarded, a Celebration Event takes place to celebrate 
authorities’ achievements.  

Level 1 Review Charter has a lifespan of three years, after which 
authorities will be asked to re-join the tool where their previous 
application will be available to review and update. Authorities do have 
the option to progress on to Level 2 within three years after achieving 
Level 1 Review. 

Appendix 1

Page 27



19

How the Assessment Visit Will Work 

1. Each visit will include one elected member from the North West 
Employers Regional Development Committee or Executive Board and 
an officer from North West Employers. 

2. The visit will be arranged in advance and will last for approximately 
half a day. An officer from North West Employers will liaise with the 
relevant officer from the authority to make the arrangements. 

3. A room and refreshments will need to be made available for the 
assessment team. 

4.  During the visit the assessment team would like to speak to: 

- The Leader (or Deputy) 
- The Chief Executive / Chief Officer 
- Leader of the Opposition Group 
- Chair or Portfolio Holder 
- Chair or Member of the Training Group 
- A Newly Elected Member 
- Three randomly Selected Elected Members 
- An Officer/s Responsible for Member Training 

5. The interviews are timetabled in 30-45 minutes slots. The 
interviews can be conducted individually or in small groups based on 
your requests. 

6. At the end of the visit the assessment team will produce a report for 
the next meeting of the Regional Development Committee. The 
assessment team will inform the authority of their decision as soon as 
possible prior to the Committee meeting. Shortly after the Committee 
meeting, the authority will receive written confirmation and copies of 
the report. 

7. If the assessment team or Regional Development Committee feel 
that some elements of the evidence are incomplete then the authority 
will be advised and will be given the opportunity to complete the 
evidence and be assessed again. 

8. If the authority is successful then they will be awarded the Charter 
and invited to the Celebration Event. 

9. Authorities can be assessed at any time during the year, however 
the Celebration Event is only held once a year.

Appendix 1

Page 28



20

What We Will Look For in the Level 1 Assessment 

During the assessment visit, there are some key areas that we shall be 
looking for, to take away examples and draw best practice from: 

! Continued commitment to member development demonstrated 
at all levels across the council 

! An established member development strategy to support 
organisational needs and overall strategy 

! Clarity of subject area and methods of delivery based on 
member needs assessments 

! 75% of members complete a PDP 

! Clear communication strategy which supports member 
development

! A method of evaluating learning and development activities and 
continuous improvement 

Appendix 1

Page 29



21

Charter Process 
Level 2

Appendix 1

Page 30



22

Charter Level 2

Are You Ready? 

Before applying for Level 2, reflect on the following questions to gauge 
whether you and the authority are ready to begin the process of Level 
2 Charter assessment. 

! Has the authority got an embedded culture in the organisation 
that is supportive of member development? 

! Does the authority and its officers have the additional skills and 
capacity to deal with the more flexible criteria and format in 
Level 2? 

! Has the authority looked at the level and quality of available 
evidence before choosing the topic for the application? 

! Has the authority considered whether it will have sufficient 
evidence of outcomes available by the assessment date? 

! Have you got other departments, services and partners 
involved?

! Have you got political buy-in from all parties? 

Appendix 1

Page 31



23

Charter Level 2 

The Level 2 process concentrates on the impact, but there is also the 
opportunity to briefly showcase continuous improvement.

If the authority wants to apply for Level 2, the process is as follows: 

Next Steps 

Step One: Evidence for Level 1 
Self Assessment 

Step Two: Evidence for Level 2 
Application Form 

i) Submit Draft Application for feedback 
ii) Final Application form 

Section 1 
Evidence of Impact of Member 

Development on the work of the 
Authority

Section 2 
Show Commitment to Continuous 

Improvement

Step Three: Complete Application Process and 
Verification Visit  

Step Four: Outcomes and Completion of Report

Step Five: The Committee Meeting

Return to complete Level 
1 Review every three 

years

Complete another Level 2 
on a different application 

Appendix 1

Page 32



24

Level 2 Process 

Step One
Evidence for Level 1 or Level 1 Review: Self Assessment 

Undertake a self assessment to check that you have maintained your 
charter status. Provide evidence under each of the five key points, 
with a storyboard to tie the points together.

There will be a pre-assessment visit to verify this evidence. This will be 
a meeting for three elected members and an officer from the authority 
and will take around 1½ hours (preferably members who are not 
directly involved in member development or part of the 
Executive/Cabinet). 

If the authority was re-accredited for Level 1 or Level 1 Review the 
previous year then this self assessment stage is not necessary, please 
jump to Step Two. 

Step Two 
Evidence for Level 2: Application Form 

Complete the Charter Review Application Form (see page 29). 

Does your entry show: 

Section 1 The impact of member development on the work of the 
local authority and the community. 

Section 2 That the authority is committed to continuous 
improvement in member development? 

Section 1: Provide evidence of impact of member development 
on the work of the local authority 

There are three main sections on the application form: 

! Issue for the authority and community: what was the 
community issue that you decided to tackle eg Corporate 
Parenting, Neighbourhood Working, Recycling, Communicating 
with hard to reach groups using IT and Transformation Agenda. 

! Member learning and development: what took place and how 
did this link to the issue? Did the learners learn what was 

Appendix 1

Page 33



25

expected, how did it all link to the corporate priorities, did you 
make any changes to anything because of the review? 

! Overall impact on the community, the members and the 
authority: what changed in the community because of the 
member learning and development? What did the authority learn 
from the whole process? 

Section 2: Show commitment to continuous improvement 

The authority will also be expected to show their commitment to 
continuous improvement in member learning and development.

! Demonstrate progress on the ‘continuous improvement’ issues 
identified at the original assessment - evidence from Level 1 
Award.

! Review processes for member development, eg Member 
Development Group to review strategy and agree new priorities. 

! Can clearly articulate where the authority wants to improve their 
practice in the future. 

Step Three 
Complete Application Process 

The electronic application form can be found at: 

www.nwemployers.org.uk
Learning and Sharing Skills 
 Councillor Development 
  North West Development Charter 
   Charter Standards and Process 

Once completed, it needs to be sent to Lorna Krisson by emailing 
lornak@nwemployers.org.uk.

After the application form has been received North West Employers will 
arrange an initial discussion with the authority. If there is sufficient 
evidence from the form, then North West Employers will proceed to 
arrange an assessment visit. If there are queries arising from the form 
then North West Employers may need to get a better understanding or 
more information from the authority. 

An assessment visit will be arranged to verify the evidence provided in 
the application form. An officer and an elected member from North 
West Employers will act as assessors. The assessors may ask to 

Appendix 1

Page 34



26

interview members of the public or people from outside bodies as well 
as elected members and staff. Each assessment process will be agreed 
with the authority and will be designed around the specific project. 

Step Four
Outcomes

The assessors will write a report that will go to the Regional 
Development Committee or Executive Board for approval. 

Step Five 
The Committee Meeting 

The Committee can: 

! Confirm successful attainment against the original standards. 
! Defer awarding status and suggest a plan of action to meet the 

Level 2 standards. 

Once awarded, a Celebration Event takes place to celebrate 
authorities’ achievements. Additionally, a special merit prize shall be 
awarded by the Municipal Journal to give one authority an exemplar 
award.

Support Offered by North West Employers 

Throughout your Charter process we are dedicated to providing 
support and guidance. We offer: 

! Guidance prior to application to assess ‘readiness’ for 
progressing your project to Level 2 Charter Status 

! Workshops and sharing events with other authorities working 
towards Level 2 

! Peer support from authorities who have been awarded Level 2 

If you require any further support or have any ideas that would be 
useful for the whole region then please do let Lorna Krisson know by 
emailing lornak@nwemployers.org.uk.

Appendix 1

Page 35



27

What We Will Look For in the Level 2 Assessment 

Charter Level 2 does not have set criteria like Charter Level 1. Level 2 
looks at whether the authority can demonstrate that the community 
has benefited from member development on a specific area. Each 
application for Level 2 is different, and therefore the assessment will 
be tailored in each case. However, there are some general things the 
assessors are looking for in Level 2. This is a guide to what is required 
to make a successful Level 2 application, under three headings: 

! What we are looking for with the project or example 
! What we are looking for with the use of evidence 
! What we are looking for in the community and authority impacts 

What we are looking for with the project or example 

The application demonstrates that: 
! The work done relates to an issue that directly affects the 

community, and (ideally) is recognised by the community. 
! Development of members has been explicitly targeted to address 

the member development needs identified around the 
community issue. 

! Members recognise which elements of learning and development 
were directly related to the issue.  

! Members can identify changes in their skills, knowledge and 
expertise on the issue before and after member development 
took place.  

! There has been an improvement on the community issues, and 
there are clear links between the member development done, 
and the outcomes, which are recognised by members 
themselves.

What we are looking for with the use of evidence 

! Statements and assertions must be backed up by evidence, 
including references for the sources of evidence. 

! A range of different types of evidence is provided from a range 
of different sources, e.g. a mix of examples or case studies, 
statistics, and documentary evidence, including material from 
members, officers, residents, and partners. 

! Evidence is provided for the situation for the authority and the 
community before the work took place, and afterwards. 

Appendix 1

Page 36



28

! All evidence provided stands up to a reasonable challenge from 
someone not involved in the work.

What we are looking for in the community and authority 
impacts

! Community and authority outcomes have been experienced by 
the community, and (ideally) are recognised by the community. 

! Any changes to strategy, policy, procedures and structures have 
led to a practical difference for the community. 

! The impacts are advanced enough to have resolved the original 
issues, or can be shown to have achieved significant milestones. 

! Outcomes described in the application are recognised by a range 
of stakeholders. 

Appendix 1

Page 37



29

CHARTER PROCESS 
LEVEL TWO 

APPLICATION FORM 

GUIDELINES FOR COMPLETING THE ON-LINE FORM

1. The Application Form will begin with the first field highlighted. 
Please treat all fields as case sensitive and use upper and lower 
case as appropriate. 

2. Use the TAB key to move through the fields. (This key is situated 
above the Caps Lock key and is usually marked by two horizontal 
arrows pointing in opposite directions).

NOTE:

Submissions should be sent to lornak@nwemployers.org.uk

Should you experience any difficulties in submitting this form, 
please contact Lorna Krisson on 0161 214 7121. 

Appendix 1

Page 38



30

CHARTER REVIEW PROCESS 
APPLICATION FORM 

About You and Your Organisation – to be completed by an officer on behalf of the 
organisation. (Members do not need to complete individual copies) 

Name of your Organisation 
Please ensure that this is correct as this name will be  
used on all PR and event related materials 

Title  First name Surname
   

Designation Department 

Department address  

Telephone Fax

Mobile E-mail 

Charter awarded in year: 

General checklist for organisations 

 Does your entry show: 

1 The impact of member development on the work of the local authority and the 
community? 

2 That the authority is committed to continuous improvement within member 
development? 

Description of your organisation 

Please give a brief description of your organisation; for example, number of 
members, political make-up of the authority, aims and objectives of the authority. 

Appendix 1

Page 39



31

Section One - Authority and the Community 

In completing this section we have some materials that may be to use to you in our 
‘Helping You on Your Way’ section on our website. We have the ‘Making a Difference’ 
evaluation toolkit, ‘North West Charter Level 2 Case Studies’ booklet containing first-
hand accounts from councillors and officers, as well as some useful documents from 
other authorities who have completed the process. 

www.nwemployers.org.uk
Learning and Sharing Skills 
 Councillor Development 
  North West Development Charter 
   Charter Standards and Process 
    Helping You on Your Way 

1. Issues for the authority and community  

! What were the issues for the community and your authority that you wanted to 
tackle at the beginning? Please give evidence of these issues, as experienced by 
the community. 

Note: For guidance on what we mean by ‘evidence’, please refer to ‘Practical Lesson 
No 1’ on page 10 of the toolkit. 

Appendix 1

Page 40



32

2. Member learning and development  

! Describe the member learning and development that took place in relation to 
these community issues, eg workshops, mentoring, video, role play, project 
work.

! How was the learning and development designed to meet the member learning 
and development needs. 

! How did you ensure the quality of the learning intervention? 
! Tell us about what people learnt with a clear ‘before and after’ picture 

e.g. Before learning I could not do ‘X’, and I did not do ‘Y’. Then I had ‘Z’ 
learning and development (based on my needs assessment). This then 
enabled me to take ‘X’ actions, which have helped recycling in ‘Y’ ways.   

3. Overall Impact 

! Describe the overall impact on the community, the members and the authority. 
! What changed in the community because of the member learning and 

development? 
! What did the authority learn from the whole process? 

Note: If you didn’t have a clear idea about the outcomes until after the 
development had taken place, then tell us about the learning that emerged – check 
the ‘Suck it and see’ section on page 27 of the toolkit. 

Appendix 1

Page 41



33

Section Two – Continuous Improvement 

Continuous Improvement  

Give examples of how the authority is committed to continuous improvement with 
member development. 

! In reviewing the evidence from your last assessment visit, what have been 
the most significant improvements? 

! What are your aspirations/hopes for the next three years? 

Appendix 1

Page 42


	Agenda
	5 Special Council Meeting 2012
	6 Member Development Charter
	Charter appendix 1


